

Approved April 28, 1988  
Date

MINUTES OF THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

The meeting was called to order by Senator Joseph C. Harder at  
Chairperson

1:30 ~~xxx~~ p.m. on Thursday, March 24, 1988 in room 123-S of the Capitol.

All members were present except:

Committee staff present:

Mr. Ben Barrett, Legislative Research Department  
Ms. Avis Swartzman, Legislative Revisor's Office  
Mrs. Millie Randell, Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee:

After calling the meeting to order, the Chairman said that the hearing on SB 746, which had been scheduled for today, has been postponed until Monday, March 28, in order to accomodate conferees who were unable to attend today's meeting.

SB 393 - Concerning fire safety and prevention; relating to the construction of school buildings

The Chairman asked the Committee to turn its attention to SB 393 and then commented that he was reluctant for the Committee to take action on the measure unless the concept of SB 393 is localized.

Senator Arasmith made a conceptual motion to amend SB 393 so as to restrict the bill to school buildings (excluding mobile, modular, portable, or relocatable buildings) and to localize the bill to apply to Johnson County only. Senator Allen seconded the motion, and the amendment was adopted.

When the Chair called for a vote on the bill, Senator Allen moved that SB 393, as amended, be reported favorably for passage. The motion was seconded by Senator Langworthy, and the motion carried.

HB 2725 - Kansas history course of instruction required in schools and teacher preparation institutions.

When the Chair called the Committee's attention to HB 2725, he distributed for Committee consideration two handouts. He explained that the two handouts represent the same concepts for amendments to HB 2725 but that they are represented in two different forms: Attachment 1, CRH 2725p1; Attachment 2, balloon form of proposed amendments to HB 2725.

Senator Langworthy moved to amend the language in Attachment 2 (balloon form) so as to include both Kansas history and government in the title and in Section 1. (a). The motion was seconded by Senator Salisbury. Senator Karr moved that the lead time for implementation of HB 2725 be no sooner than the commencement of the 1991-92 school year and requested that this motion be included as part of the primary motion. Senator Montgomery seconded this motion.

Senator Langworthy then made a substitute motion to pass HB 2725, as amended in the original balloon form, Attachment 2. Senator Allen seconded the motion, but the motion did not carry.

When the Chair called for a vote on the primary motion to amend HB 2725, the motion carried.

Senator Kerr made a motion to amend HB 2725 by striking all of the language following Kansas history in Section 1. (a) beginning with the word "which" and ending with the word "thereof". Senator Parrish seconded the motion, but the motion did not carry.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION,

room 123-S Statehouse, at 1:30 ~~xxx~~ p.m. on Thursday, March 24, 1988

Senator Karr moved that HB 2725, as amended, be recommended favorably for passage. Senator Allen seconded the motion, and the motion carried.

HB 2799 - School districts, tuition payments for pupils attending school in districts of nonresidence

When the Chairman called the Committee's attention to HB 2799, Senator Montgomery submitted for distribution copies of some proposed amendments (Attachment 3) he would like for the Committee to consider. Senator Montgomery then moved that his proposed amendments to HB 2799 be adopted. Senator Warren seconded the motion and the amendments were adopted.

Senator Warren then moved that HB 2799, as amended, be recommended favorably for passage. Senator Montgomery seconded the motion, and the motion carried.

HB 2823 - Use of tobacco products prohibited in school buildings

When the Chairman called the Committee's attention to HB 2823, he also informed the Committee that copies of an amended bill for clarification purposes had been distributed to the members. (Attachment 4)

Senator Allen moved that the Committee adopt the amendments to HB 2823 as found in Attachment 4. Senator Salisbury seconded the motion.

Senator Anderson made a substitute motion to table HB 2823 and explained his motion by saying that HB 2823 represents a problem that should be handled by the local boards. The motion failed for lack of a second.

The Chair referred the Committee's attention to the original motion to adopt the amendments to HB 2823 (as found in Attachment 4), and the amendments were adopted.

Senator Salisbury moved that HB 2823, as amended, be recommended favorably for passage. Senator Kerr seconded the motion.

Senator Langworthy made a substitute motion recommending that the concept of HB 2823 be made into a resolution. Senator Anderson seconded the substitute motion, but the substitute motion did not carry.

When the Chair called for a vote on the primary motion to pass HB 2823, as amended, the motion carried.

The Chair adjourned the meeting.

SENATE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

TIME: 1:30 p.m. PLACE: 123-S DATE: Thursday, March 24, 1988

GUEST LIST

<u>NAME</u>	<u>ADDRESS</u>	<u>ORGANIZATION</u>
Harold Pittz	Topeka	
Cyril Burnett	Topeka	U.S. 50177
Ken Rogey	Paola	S & E
Connie Huesel	Perkasie	SL Bd of Ed
Craig Grant	Topeka	H-NEA
M. Hume	"	Cap Journal
Bob Kelly	"	ICICA
Richard S Funk	"	KAIQ
Dana Funk	"	U.S. # 501
Jon Bray	"	Hepatitis Test

SENATE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

TIME: 1:30 p.m. PLACE: 123-S DATE: Thursday, March 24, 1988

GUEST LIST

<u>NAME</u>	<u>ADDRESS</u>	<u>ORGANIZATION</u>
<i>John Pette</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>K. C. Times</i>
<i>Carole Kuhn</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>KFT</i>
<i>Galen Davis</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>Governor's Office</i>
<i>Jim Rogers</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>Governor's Office</i>
<i>Greg Peterson</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>Governor's Office</i>
<i>David Kuhn</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>City of Topeka</i>
<i>Brigida Highline Scott</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>USA</i>
<i>Leslie Anderson</i>	<i>Topeka</i>	<i>USA</i>

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MR. PRESIDENT:

Your Committee on Education

Recommends that House Bill No. 2725 (As Amended by House Committee of the Whole

"AN ACT concerning the state of Kansas; requiring the provision of a course of instruction thereon by certain accredited schools; imposing a requirement for the provision of a course of study thereon by teacher preparation institutions; amending K.S.A. 72-1103 and 72-1372 and repealing the existing sections."

Be amended:

On page 1, by striking all of lines 41 to 47, inclusive;

On page 2, by striking all of lines 86 to 88, inclusive;

On page 3, by striking all of lines 89 to 120, inclusive;

On page 4, by striking all of lines 145 and 146 and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"Section 1. (a) The state board of education shall provide for a course of instruction in Kansas history, which shall be required for all students graduating from an accredited high school in this state. The course shall be provided and given for not less than 1/2 unit of credit, or the equivalent thereof.

(b) The state board of education shall prescribe the school year in which the requirement of subsection (a) shall become applicable and may provide for such waivers from the requirement as the board deems appropriate.";

Also on page 4, in line 147, by striking the figure "4" and inserting the figure "2";

In the title, in line 33, by striking all after "ACT" and inserting in lieu thereof "requiring the"; in line 34, by striking "thereon" and inserting "in Kansas history"; in line 35, by striking all after "schools"; by striking all of lines 36 to 38, inclusive; in line 39, by striking the word "sections";

And the bill be passed as amended.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Chairperson

3122

(Corrected)

[As Amended by House Committee of the Whole]

As Amended by House Committee

Session of 1988

### HOUSE BILL No. 2725

By Representatives Harper, Acheson, Amos, Aylward, Beauchamp, Bideau, Bowden, Branson, Bryant, Buehler, C. Campbell, K. Campbell, Douville, Dyck, Eckert, Empson, Flottman, Freeman, Fuller, Gatlin, Gross, Grotewiel, Guldner, Hassler, Hoy, Jenkins, Johnson, Kennard, King, Lacey, Littlejohn, Love, Mead, R.D. Miller, Mollenkamp, Moomaw, Neufeld, O'Neal, Ott, Peterson, Pottorff, Ramirez, Rezac, Roenbaugh, Rosenau, Sader, Sallee, Sand, Shallenburger, Shore, Solbach, Sughrue, Wagon, Weimer, Wells, Whiteman, Wilbert and Williams

1-29

0033 AN ACT ~~concerning the state of Kansas history~~; requiring the \_\_\_\_\_ in Kansas history  
0034 provision of a course of instruction therein ~~thereon~~ by certain  
0035 accredited schools; ~~imposing a requirement for the provision~~  
0036 ~~of a course of study thereof~~ by persons preparing to teach  
0037 ~~thereon by teacher preparation institutions~~; amending K.S.A.  
0038 72-1103, and 72-1372 and 72-1388, and repealing the existing  
0039 sections.

0040 *Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

0041 ~~Section 1. K.S.A. 72-1103 is hereby amended to read as fol-~~  
0042 ~~lows: 72-1103. All (a) Every~~ accredited schools, public, private or  
0043 ~~parochial, elementary school shall provide and give to all pupils~~  
0044 ~~a complete course of instruction to all pupils, in civil govern-~~  
0045 ~~ment, and in United States history, and in patriotism and the~~  
0046 ~~duties of a citizen, suitable to the elementary grades, in addition~~  
0047 thereto, all.

0048 (b) ~~Every~~ accredited school which is maintaining any or all  
0049 of the grades four through eight shall provide and give to all  
0050 pupils attending any of such grades so maintained a complete  
0051 course of instruction in Kansas history. The provisions of this

Attachment 2, 3/24/88

0052 subsection shall be implemented prior to or at the commence-  
0053 ment of the 1990-91 school year.

0054 (b) (1) Every accredited school which is maintaining any or  
0055 all of the grades seven through 12 shall provide and give a course  
0056 of instruction concerning the state of Kansas. The course shall be  
0057 provided and given for not less than  $\frac{1}{2}$  unit of credit, or the  
0058 equivalent thereof, at any one or more of the grade levels seven  
0059 through 12 and shall contain historical and biographical infor-  
0060 mation pertaining to Kansas and Kansans. The course may also  
0061 include, but not by way of limitation, information pertaining to  
0062 geography, natural resources, educational system, industrial eli-  
0063 mate and government of Kansas. [The provisions of this subsec-  
0064 tion shall be implemented prior to or at the commencement of  
0065 the 1991-92 school year.]

0066 (2) Commencing with the 1991-92 school year, except as  
0067 otherwise provided in this subsection, no student who has not  
0068 taken and satisfactorily passed the course of instruction required  
0069 by this subsection shall be certified as having completed the  
0070 course requirements necessary for graduation from high school.

0071 (3) Provision (2) of this subsection does not apply to (A) any  
0072 student who transfers from one accredited school to another  
0073 accredited school if the school from which the student transfers  
0074 provides and gives the required course concerning the state of  
0075 Kansas at a grade level or at grade levels higher than the grade  
0076 level to which the student transfers attendance and if the school  
0077 to which the student transfers provides and gives the required  
0078 course concerning the state of Kansas at a grade level or at grade  
0079 levels lower than the grade level to which the student transfers  
0080 attendance; or (B) any student who transfers to an accredited  
0081 school from a school in another state if the school to which the  
0082 student transfers provides and gives the required course con-  
0083 cerning the state of Kansas at a grade level or at grade levels  
0084 lower than the grade level to which the student transfers attend-  
0085 ance; or (C) any student who is not a resident of Kansas.

0086 ~~[(b) Every accredited school which is maintaining any or all~~  
0087 ~~of the grades four through eight shall provide and give to all~~  
0088 ~~pupils attending any of such grades so maintained a complete~~



0089 ~~course of instruction in Kansas history. The provisions of this~~  
0090 ~~subsection shall be implemented prior to or at the commence-~~  
0091 ~~ment of the 1991-92 school year.]~~

0092 ~~(c) Every accredited high schools, public, private or paro-~~  
0093 ~~chial, school shall provide and give a course of instruction~~  
0094 ~~concerning the government and institutions of the United States,~~  
0095 ~~and particularly of concerning the constitution of the United~~  
0096 ~~States; and, No student who has not taken and satisfactorily~~  
0097 ~~passed such the course of instruction required by this subsec-~~  
0098 ~~tion shall be certified as having completed the course require-~~  
0099 ~~ments necessary for graduation from high school.~~

0100 ~~Sec. 2. K.S.A. 72-1372 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~

0101 ~~72-1372. (a) Any institution on the accredited list shall be subject~~  
0102 ~~to examination by the state board at its pleasure with respect to~~  
0103 ~~its course of study, its equipment, and the character of its work;~~  
0104 ~~and, Additional requirements of any institution on the accred-~~  
0105 ~~ited list may be made by the state board. [The course shall also~~  
0106 ~~contain information regarding Black history and the contribu-~~  
0107 ~~tions made by Black persons to the heritage of Kansans.]~~

0108 ~~(b) In addition to any other requirements, the state board~~  
0109 ~~shall require every institution on the accredited list to include in~~  
0110 ~~its course of study not less than two semester hours of credit in~~  
0111 ~~the subject of Kansas history a course of study concerning the~~  
0112 ~~state of Kansas. The course of study shall be designed so as to~~  
0113 ~~enable persons preparing to teach at the middle, junior high or~~  
0114 ~~high school level to provide and give the course of instruction~~  
0115 ~~required by subsection (b) of K.S.A. 72-1103, and amendments~~  
0116 ~~thereto. The provisions of this subsection shall be implemented~~  
0117 ~~prior to or at the commencement of the fall semester in the~~  
0118 ~~1980-81 1990-91 academic year.~~

0119 ~~(c) Any institution failing to maintain a standard satisfactory~~  
0120 ~~to the state board shall be dropped from the accredited list.~~

0121 ~~See. 3. K.S.A. 72-1388 is hereby amended to read as follows:~~  
0122 ~~72-1388. (a) The state board of education, in accordance with~~  
0123 ~~law, is authorized to adopt rules and regulations providing for~~  
0124 ~~the issuance, renewal, reinstatement and registration of certifi-~~  
0125 ~~cates for teachers and other personnel in the state department of~~



0136 ~~education and in schools and institutions under the general~~  
0137 ~~supervision of the state board of education;~~

0138 ~~(b) In addition to other requirements and subject to the~~  
0139 ~~provisions of K.S.A. 72-1306, and amendments thereto, the rules~~  
0140 ~~and regulations of the state board of education shall include After~~  
0141 ~~May 1, 1986, (1) Subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 72-1306, and~~  
0142 ~~amendments thereto, the requirement that applicants for initial~~  
0143 ~~issuance of certificates to teach shall take and satisfactorily pass~~  
0144 ~~an examination prescribed by the state board, and (2) after June~~  
0145 ~~1, 1990, the requirement that applicants for initial issuance of~~  
0146 ~~certificates to teach at the elementary, middle or junior high~~  
0147 ~~school level shall have satisfactorily completed at least two~~  
0148 ~~semester hours of study in the subject of Kansas history at an~~  
0149 ~~educational institution on the accredited list of the state board.~~

0150 ~~(c) The privilege to teach at any level or in any field or~~  
0151 ~~subject, if such privilege is or has been granted when a certifi-~~  
0152 ~~cate is issued, may not be withheld during the term for which the~~  
0153 ~~certificate is issued except as provided in K.S.A. 72-1382 or~~  
0154 ~~72-5412, and amendments to such sections.~~

0155 ~~Sec. 43. K.S.A. 72-1102, and 72-1372 and 72-1388 are hereby~~  
0156 ~~repealed. ]~~

0157 ~~Sec. 57. This act shall take effect and be in force from and~~  
0158 ~~after its publication in the statute book.~~

Section 1. (a) The state board of education shall provide for a course of instruction in Kansas history, which shall be required for all students graduating from an accredited high school in this state. The course shall be provided and given for not less than 1/2 unit of credit, or the equivalent thereof.

TE 214

(b) The state board of education shall prescribe the school year in which the requirement of subsection (a) shall become applicable and may provide for such waivers from the requirement as the board deems appropriate.

2.

House Bill No. 2799

Amendments

Deletions:

Lines 0086 general state aid the sending school district  
0087 is entitled to receive for such pupil or pupils under the  
0088 school district equalization act.

Add:

Line 0086 exceed one-half of the amount of the median budget per pupil in such district's enrollment category under the school district equalization act for the preceding school year. Such provision shall not apply to Unified School District No. 104; and

		<sup>86-87</sup> <i>aid per pupil</i>	<sup>86-87</sup> <i>Budget Per Pupil</i>
Belleville:	median - \$4368	\$1,444	\$4,165
	$\frac{1}{2}$ median - \$2184		
White Rock:	median - \$4588	\$930	\$6,322
	$\frac{1}{2}$ median - \$2294		
Smith Center:	median - \$4302	\$1,213	\$3,838
	$\frac{1}{2}$ median - \$2151		
Nemaha Valley:	median - \$4588	\$2,065	\$4,966
	$\frac{1}{2}$ median - \$2294		
Shawnee Mission:	median - \$3183	0	\$3,525
	$\frac{1}{2}$ median - \$1591		
Sabetha:	median - #3968	\$1,878	\$3,808
	$\frac{1}{2}$ median - \$1924		

HOUSE BILL No. 2823

By Representatives Baker, Acheson, Amos, Apt, Beauchamp, Branson, Buehler, Bunten, C. Campbell, K. Campbell, Chronister, Crumbaker, Dyck, Flottman, Fuller, Harder, Mollenkamp, Moomaw, Neufeld, Ott, Roenbaugh and Schauf

2-8

0021 AN ACT prohibiting the use of tobacco products in public  
0022 ~~schools.~~ school buildings

0023 *Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

0024 Section 1. (a) The use of tobacco products in any school  
0025 building is hereby prohibited. No board of education of any  
0026 school district shall allow any person to use tobacco products in  
0027 any school building.

0028 (b) As used in this section, the term "school building" means  
0029 ~~any building or structure or that part of a building or structure~~ enclosed  
0030 ~~operated or used for pupil attendance purposes~~ by the board of used for pupil attendance purposes  
0031 education of a unified school district ~~but shall not include a~~ . The term school building does  
0032 building ~~or structure~~, or part thereof, used for residential pur-  
0033 poses or leased by the school district for nonschool sponsored from  
0034 activities.

0035 Sec. 2. This act shall take effect and be in force from and  
0036 after its publication in the statute book.

Attachment 4, 3/24/88